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on the beach. State Highways back in the 1970s installed a large boulder rip rap wall 
to ensure that we would not lose our highway. If you look at it now, we have some 
beach sand that came back. I know we depend a lot on our geologists and our studies, 
but we do not really know what Mother Nature holds for the future. This placement 
of concrete on top of sand will not ruin the beach or erode the beach. It will not ruin 
the beach, again, if you lay concrete on top of sand. If anything, the ocean waves will 
undermine that concrete and we may have to remove the concrete or remove the truss 
depending on what Doug and his group recommends, to do the right thing, like 
Council Vice Chair Chock ensured. With that being said, please go out to the west 
side to look at what happened over the last sixty (60) to seventy (70) years. Beaches 
come and go, they installed the rip rap wall, and there are ways to ensure that we 
can stop the erosion. I will be supporting this Resolution. Thank you. 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: Is there anyone else with final discussion? If 
not, I guess I am the last to comment. I am in support of this Resolution. One of the 
biggest issues during my time on this Council and what we hear from the public is 
about maintaining and perpetuating access to the ocean, access along the coast, and 
mauka-to-makai access. For me, that overrides any decision. We hear all of these 
concerns about birds and safety, but ultimately, our residents and the public deserve 
to have a nice, improved way to get to the ocean in that area. That is why I am in 
favor of the Resolution. In this case, I heard about cost being a big factor. We are 
actually getting federal funds to do a lot of these improvements. Granted, the public 
can go to the area now, but it will be improved even better. That is good for the 
residents. I heard about concrete-hardened surfaces and I think Councilmember 
DeCosta addressed that already. A concrete-hardened surface does not cause erosion. 
Climate change, sea level rise, and changing tides cause erosion. It just so happens 
that your concrete is there and it will get affected. Those factors that we have no 
control over are what is going to cause sand to erode from the beach or to refill the 
beach. We really have no control over that. I am just looking at the bigger picture. 
No matter where we go around the island, we always hear the resounding noise from 
the public that they want to preserve our coastal access and our mauka-to-makai 
access. In this case, this is going to be an improvement and something that the public 
will enjoy for years to come. Will erosion happen? It probably will, but I am willing 
to say that I am in favor of voting for this now and giving our residents the 
opportunity to enjoy that coastline. We need to finish that little section and actually 
have a wider and improved mauka-to-makai access. That is where my vote is. I have 
heard all of the concerns. There is no way to satisfy everyone. The overall picture 
for me is to give all of the residents and everyone the opportunity to get to the coast. 
Is there any final discussion? If not, we will take a roll call vote. 

The motion for adoption of Resolution No. 2021-13 on second and final reading, 
and that it be transmitted to the Mayor for his approval was then put, and 
carried by the following vote: 

FOR ADOPTION: Carvalho, Chock, DeCosta, 
Evslin, Kuali'i, Kaneshiro 

AGAINST ADOPTION: Cowden 
EXCUSED & NOT VOTING: None 
RECUSED & NOT VOTING: None 

TOTAL-6, 
TOTAL-I, 
TOTAL-0, 
TOTAL-0. 
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JADE K. FOUNTAIN-TANIGAWA, County Clerk: Six (6) ayes, one (1) no. 
The motion passes. 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: Next item. 

Resolution No. 2021-18 RESOLUTION CONFIRMING MAYORAL 
APPOINTMENT TO THE LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION (Lorna A. 
Nishimitsu) 

Councilmember Kuali'i moved for adoption of Resolution No. 2021-18, 
seconded by Councilmember Carvalho. 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: Does anyone have any questions or is there 
any discussion? Councilmember Cowden. 

Councilmember Cowden: I want to start by acknowledging the gift that 
comes from the people who volunteer. I appreciate all of them. I will be supporting 
Lorna. She is a very bright and brilliant woman. I am wanting to speak for a moment 
because it was not lost on me that she did not volunteer, but was selected. She worked 
with the Boards and Commissions Administrator's husband for decades. I struggle 
with these types of relationships that get built. This is an industry in distress and 
that is due to State and County COVID-19 response policies. On that very important 
Commission, as long as I have gone to those meetings ... they have really incredible 
people on there. What I have not seen to my knowledge is someone who works in that 
industry. I think that we need to be having people who worked in the industry. They 
spend one percent (1 %) of their gross sales. These restaurants and bars are lucky to 
net five percent (5%) at the end of the year. I think what we need, is that I want to 
be looking at a Charter Amendment to allow a transparent application process. That 
is what we need. I want to know that people want the job and that they have a 
background in it, and when they come to the table, they are going to be bringing 
knowledge from different parts of the industry and different parts of the island. They 
will be coming together to be able to assist what is happening. When I go to the 
Liquor Control Commission meetings, it is mostly about the amount of the fine that 
they are getting. There is no strategizing about how to help the industry. Thank you, 
Lorna, if she is listening, for being willing to spend your time. I do not think it will 
be too stressful. I appreciate your willingness to serve and for your brilliance and 
ability to do the job. I think we need to be looking at having people want the job and 
having it open to other people. We should not be hand-selecting people from a small 
pool of people. 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: Does anyone else have any discussion? 
Councilmember DeCosta. 

Councilmember DeCosta: I am a little confused with your statement, 
Councilmember Cowden. I believe Lorna had the ability to defer or reject her 
appointment, did she not? 
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Councilmember Cowden: Yes, sure. 

Councilmember DeCosta: Apparently, she wants to be there. 

Councilmember Cowden: Do you want my clarification? I know on 
different commissions, there are people who apply and would like to be on different 
boards and commissions. In the future, I would like to see a way that we change the 
system so that there are people who have background, knowledge, and an eagerness 
to serve who are the ones serving, rather than the ones who selflessly will say that 
they are willing. I would like them to be wanting. There is a difference between 
willing and wanting. 

Councilmember DeCosta: With that being said, I know that the Mayor 
appoints them and we elect our Mayor for a reason. We believe in them when they 
run for Mayor to elect them. As Council Vice Chair Chock recently stated about 
believing in the Planning Department and Doug that they will make the right 
decision for the bike path, we have to be able to believe in who we select as Mayor to 
make the right decision in his or her appointees. I did some research on Lorna and 
we talked about it the last time. She is a very well-qualified candidate. I personally 
like her and know her. She is a great Kaua'i resident who grew up in our system. 
She is a local girl who came up through our public school system. Her 
accomplishments are impeccable, and I am honored to have her serve. Thank you. 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: 
roll call vote. 

Does anyone else have any comments? If not, 

(No written testimony was received and no registered speakers requested to 
testify regarding this agenda item.) 

The motion for adoption of Resolution No. 2021-18 was then put, and carried 
by the following vote: 

FOR ADOPTION: 

AGAINST ADOPTION: 
EXCUSED & NOT VOTING: 
RECUSED & NOT VOTING: 

Carvalho, Chock, Cowden, 
DeCosta, Evslin, Kuali'i, Kaneshiro 
None 
None 
None 

Ms. Fountain-Tanigawa: Seven (7) ayes. 

TOTAL-7, 
TOTAL-0, 
TOTAL-0, 
TOTAL-0. 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: The motion is carried. Next item. 

Resolution No. 2021-19 RESOLUTION CONFIRMING MAYORAL 
APPOINTMENT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION (Gerald T. Ako - Labor) 

Councilmember Carvalho moved for adoption of Resolution No. 2021-19, 
seconded by Councilmember Kuali'i. 
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Council Chair Kaneshiro: Does anyone have any questions or 
discussion? Councilmember Cowden. 

Councilmember Cowden: Similarly, the Planning Commission is a 
really challenging job. I invite all of you to watch the video from the last Planning 
Commission meeting. I ask you to look at the video at the one hour and 
forty-three minute mark. You will see the critically important questions that these 
people face. I am going to support this very capable and quality person. He did not 
reach out to have this job, and I hope that he was able to see it. I have gone to the 
Planning Commission meetings for years. For years, very rarely do the people 
appointed to these positions attend previous meetings. Right now, our community is 
in a crisis. Properties are flying away. This person is going to be stepping in to a 
very difficult choice that ended in a 3:3 vote. We had former Attorney General 
Marjorie Bronster against recent County Attorney Mauna Kea Trask, basically 
putting the Commission of asking for a contested case intervenor status for a very 
wealthy neighbor to stop a two thousand (2,000) square-foot home to be built. These 
are the kind of items that are going before our Planning Commission. It is powerful 
in what it means. At the end of it, there is a time where our former County Attorney 
asked to have one last round and when the vote came out 3:3, he with the authority 
of the County Attorney that he was, basically told that Commission that he won. He 
determined the outcome for them. We had a Deputy County Attorney who was 
staffing the Commission meeting who stood her ground, and it is coming back again 
on their agenda. What happens with things like that is powerful. It takes away the 
ability of our own Planning Commission and Planning Department to do their jobs. 
I implore all of you to watch it. This is critical as to what is going on our island. We 
have very wealthy people come in and we are asking so much of these people doing 
the work. We have a responsibility as a check and balance on these appointments, 
and we have the responsibility for their budget. When we have these things going to 
contested case hearings, it costs a lot of money. We have people who are parties to 
this paying one million four hundred thousand dollars ($1,400,000) as a small 
restaurant trying to get parking. It is crazy. The party with the deepest pockets 
often wins. We exhaust the financial capacity of our people and we really need to 
take a deep look at ... Kaua'i is the only County that has our Planning Department 
Director be chosen by the Planning Commission. The person who chooses those 
Planning Commissioners to guide them, when that person is married to someone very 
key, the Mayor cannot even undo that. We are different than the other counties. It 
gives just an extraordinary amount of power in the wrong direction. We have a 
problem and we need to take a look at this. It is not about a very qualified or amazing 
individual. 1t is the fact that we have these people express to us during their · 
interviews about what they like to eat, where they would like to go on vacation, or 
how they like to shop. We need to take this seriously and ask them real questions. 
We need to have people who are aware and support them so they know what they are 
getting into. I think we need more staff in the Office of Boards & Commissions and I 
think we really have a challenge there. You can hear that I am upset. If I do not ever 
speak up, then I do not ever speak up. We are not supposed to be a rubberstamp. We 
have a problem happening and we are losing our land for our local people because of 
it. Whoever has the most money wins at Planning. I hope that there is more training. 
I went to that last Planning Commission meeting, and I had gone to every single place 
that was on the agenda. Every single agenda item was very significant, and I do not 
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think anyone in that room had gone to look. What is on paper is not the same thing 
as what is reality. Councilmember DeCosta, you talked about common sense or a 
regular person. We are not having a government that serves the regular person 
anymore. It is really important to me that we think about that. I am using this 
opportunity to state that distress that I have. I have brought it up many times. It is 
consistently ignored. I am finally saying it on camera. Yes, I support this individual. 
I do not want to put his name with the tone in my voice. I think he is a great guy. I 
do not think we have a great system and we need to ·improve. 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: 
roll call vote. 

Does anyone else have any discussion? If not, 

(No written testimony was received and no registered speakers requested to 
testify regarding this agenda item.) 

The motion for adoption of Resolution No. 2021-19 was then put, and carried 
by the following vote: 

FOR ADOPTION: 

AGAINST ADOPTION: 
EXCUSED & NOT VOTING: 
RECUSED & NOT VOTING: 

Carvalho, Chock, Cowden, 
DeCosta, Evslin, Kuali'i, Kaneshiro 
None 
None 
None 

Ms. Fountain-Tanigawa: Seven (7) ayes. 

TOTAL-7, 
TOTAL-0, 
TOTAL-0, 
TOTAL-0. 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: The motion is carried. Next item. 

Resolution No. 2021-20 - RESOLUTION SUPPORTING DIGITAL EQUITY 
AND URGING DEVELOPMENT OF BROADBAND INFRASTRUCTURE TO 
BOLSTER COVID-19 RECOVERY AND FOSTER ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Councilmember Kuali'i moved for adoption of Resolution No. 2021-20, 
seconded by Councilmember Chock. 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: We received written testimony. 
Councilmember Evslin, did you want to lead us into this item? I know you have some 
resources available. We will let you take it from there. If they have a presentation, 
we can take that, then we will hold our questions until that is completed. 
Councilmember Evslin. 

Councilmember Evslin: Councilmember DeCosta and I can give a 
brief introduction to the Resolution. We have two (2) resource persons here, Burt 
Lum and Ken Hughes. Burt Lum is from Hawai'i Visitors and Convention Bureau 
(HCVB), and he may have had to leave. Ken Hughes may also have to leave soon. I 
am going to try and keep my introduction comments brief. If you have specific 
questions on the Broadband Hui or the declaration, those can be addressed to either 
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us or Ken Hughes. The Resolution is straightforward. It recognizes that there are 
vast inequities in access to the internet. These inequities were exacerbated during 
the COVID-19 pandemic, preventing residents from accessing employment, 
education, healthcare, civic engagement, emergency preparedness, and other critical 
services. There are many facets to the issue. One of the main drivers of inequitable 
access is that a lot of the companies providing broadband services are for-profit 
companies. Infrastructure is expensive so they are investing in infrastructure in 
population centers. Rural areas like the outer islands, especially the rural parts of 
the outer islands, are then not getting the broadband infrastructure that they need, 
because the companies cannot pay off their investment. Honolulu has great access to 
the internet, while the outer islands do not. There are other facets to the problem 
including: low-income communities that do not have computers or any internet access 
and the state suffers from aging fiberoptic cables to the mainland and interisland. In 
response to these issues and others, the State developed the Hawai'i Broadband 
Strategic Plan, which has four (4) primary goals: 1) Ensure robust broadband 
infrastructure to all Hawai'i residents; 2) Expand digital inclusion in adoption to 
achieve digital equity; 3) Enable Hawai'i to thrive through a digital economy; and 4) 
Strengthen community resilience through broadband. The Digital Equity 
Declaration, which this Resolution would sign us on to, sets the foundation for 
ensuring that equity, affordability, and accessibility remain at the forefront of our 
move towards expanding broadband. The Declaration is built on three (3) pillars of 
digital equity: 1) Affordable quality broadband for all; 2) A baseline of digital 
competence for all; and 3) Societal systems effectively leveraging digital opportunities 
to improve lives. I will try and wrap this up really quickly. I think one of the primary 
threads through both the strategic plan and the Digital Equity Declaration is that 
the private sector alone cannot solve these problems. We need public-private 
cooperation. For example, if it is not profitable to install hardware in rural areas, 
that hardware will not be installed without some type of public subsidy. As I see it, 
the purpose of these two (2) documents is to recognize the importance of broadband 
internet and to recognize that public subsidies are critical to ensuring equitable 
distribution. Most or a lot of this is targeted towards the State and how we are going 
to best utilize federal moneys coming to us in ensuring greater resiliency. There are 
some County-targeted items, especially in the Digital Equity Declaration. There are 
things including: ensuring that all public buildings are offering free WiFi twenty-four 
hours/seven days a week (24/7), ensuring that we have the ability to receive online 
testimony, even post-COVID-19, ensuring there is a single online portal for online 
government services, et cetera. There are things in this that I think the County could 
take out of this more than just supporting the State in moving forward. I will pass 
this on to Councilmember DeCosta. We also have Burt online and he will be a great 
resource. 

Councilmember DeCosta: I just want to echo what Councilmember 
Evslin said. In our rural areas, there is no financial incentive for private companies 
to invest in them. You all know many people who live on Kaua'i in rural areas where 
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the internet service is really weak or poor. You still pay the same price as everyone 
else. Let us not forget when our undersea cable was severed and we had a blackout 
on Kaua'i. Our infrastructure is almost at its lifespan. I believe within the next 
two (2) or three (3) years, that will have to be replaced. Hawai'i is not the hub like it 
used to be. Now they are running underwater sea cables from the west coast all the 
way to Japan. We do not want to be left behind. This Broadband Strategic Plan will 
improve robust infrastructure, digital equity, and digital economy. It will strengthen 
the resilience of everyone. Remember, our children now are studying abroad. They 
can go to college on the East Coast right out of their own living room. They can wake 
up at 4:00 a.m. and make a 9:00 a.m. class. It is frustrating when that student in a 
rural area gets cut off in his or her class at 10:00 a.m. at Yale University because they 
are studying at home on their laptop because of the internet service. Let us remember 
this Strategic Plan. With that, I will turn it over to Burt. 

Councilmember Evslin: Burt or Ken, if you would not mind giving a 
quick overview of the Boardbard Hui and the rationale for developing the Digital 
Equity Declaration, then we can open it up after that for questions from the 
Councilmembers. 

There being no objections, the rules were suspended. 

BURT LUM (via remote technology): We would be happy to. Aloha, Council 
Chair Kaneshiro and Councilmembers. I am the Strategy Officer for Broadband here 
at the State ofHawai'i. Councilmember Evslin asked me to provide some background 
on what we have been doing in light of the COVID-19 pandemic. When I first took 
this job back in 2018, it was really focused on how to make sure we stay connected to 
the global internet and looking at key infrastructure. That is how I met Ken. I came 
over and was doing a presentation on Kaua'i. In March of 2020, when the world was 
sequestered at home, what we did was we called together some of the stakeholders. 
In the early days of the pandemic, we were looking at what the carriers were 
providing that will help to enable the students in education, that were now 
sequestered at home, to access distance learning. At the beginning, they were not 
really consistent with what it is that they were offering. We wanted to get everyone 
on the call, including those from the Department of Education (DOE), Hawai'i 
Association of Independent Schools (HAIS), the private schools, as well as the 
University of Hawai'i and other colleges, to hear that information directly from the 
carriers. That helped put the carriers on the spot to explain how they are 
participating in at the time it was called the Keep Americans Connected (KAC) 
program under the Federal Communications Commission (FCC). We continued to 
commit to meeting every week. I have the meetings every Wednesday, and this 
Wednesday, the meeting took place at 9:00 a.m. It is our fifty-sixth (56th) consecutive 
week of meeting. We have expanded the discussion to include the wireless carriers, 
as well as nonprofits, stakeholders, legislators, councilmembers, and we even have 
Congressional representation. We are all basically on the call trying to understand 
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what are some of the gaps that exist in our communities and how can we bring 
together the right resources to help address those gaps. Believe me, over the course 
of the fifty-six (56) weeks ... you have to remember that back in 2020, we were under 
a different administration. We were following closely what President Trump was 
doing. At the end of 2020, there was the Consolidated Appropriations Act and before 
that it was the Corona virus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act. We had 
to make sure we could address the existing gaps given some of the funding that was 
becoming available. You fast-forward to 2021, and now you have the American 
Rescue Plan (ARP). There is a recognition by the Federal government that more 
funding is going to become available and realizing that the State itself is cash 
strapped, we cannot depend on the State to put money in towards infrastructure to 
digital equity programs. There is a recognized value in what the Federal government 
can make available. As the Broadband Hui continues to meet and discuss, and of 
course, all of the counties are invited to join us, we are on a constant weekly quest to 
address what are some of the issues and resources, and how can we bring the two (2) 
together to achieve these goals that we have set. Part of the guiding principles that 
Councilmember Evslin has talked about were set towards the end of summer of last 
year, the Hui got together and talked about what we were going to do as our guiding 
light. That is what really prompted the creation of the Digital Equity Declaration. 
We came together and formed subgroups, we identified some of the key goals, and 
that is what you see in the declaration. During the process, we also had legislators 
on the call and they agreed that this is really important. What they have 
consequently done is, they have passed several Senate and House Resolutions 
recognizing the digital equity integration, the week of October 4th through 8th to be 
Digital Inclusion Week, and in another bill heard this past week, was to work with 
the Executive Office on Aging to ensure that we do not forget about the kupuna in 
terms of literacy access as well as the access to hardware. Our goal here is to help 
marketize technology. How do we get it as far and wide as possible for people to take 
advantage of for their education, health, and work, but also, how do they now 
participate and hopefully excel in the digital economy? That is going to be the key to 
Hawai'i's survival going into the 21st century. How do we leverage our connectivity 
to the rest of the world? As everyone knows, we are in the middle of the Pacific Ocean, 
and we cannot depend on any of our neighbors. We have to do it ourselves. That is 
what we have done with the Hui and with some of the documents, whether it is the 
Declaration or the strategic plan, and getting others, like yourselves, onboard with 
what it is that we are trying to do. It is basically creating a unified movement to 
make sure that Hawai'i is a very active and successful participant in this digital 
economy. That is what I wanted to share with you all. I am available for any 
questions you might have. Thank you. 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: Councilmember Evslin. 
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Councilmember Evslin: I just need to apologize to Burt. I think I said 
you were from HVCB, but you are actually from the Department of Business, 
Economic Development, and Tourism (DBEDT), right? 

Mr. Lum: Correct. 

Councilmember Evslin: My apologies for that. 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: Councilmember Cowden. 
Councilmember Cowden: Thank you. As a former teacher, I definitely 

experienced one year where I had a big plan using Khan Academy to support it, that 
over half my students did not have internet when they went home. Many of them 
were actually trying to use their parents' cell phones when they were somewhere to 
do any of the online work. I want to recognize that there is a serious challenge. I 
have been a proponent of the houseless encampments. Pretty much all of them are 
in locations, except for Waimea, where the access to internet was very limited. There 
is so much of this that I really support. When I look on page 3, the six (6) items that 
are the area of focus, I only struggle with one of them. If it is okay with you, I want 
to say thank you. I know you do not have a lot of time, at least that is what I have 
been told. I was the one really asking. Number 3 says, "Wireless broadband 
deployment, including 5G small cells." Can you tell us what those 5G small cells will 
be and where they will be? 

Mr. Lum: We try to be technology-neutral. We 
recognize that 5G is the next generation of wireless technology. We definitely support 
the wireless industry's evolution from 3G to 4G to 5G. We are not necessarily 
advocating that communities embrace that regardless of any of the local interest. We 
try to be, again, neutral with the technology. What we do want to enable is all of the 
communities to be able to access the benefits, whether it is broadband, the access to 
the internet, or the application and services. One of the things that we have tried to 
do is, and you mentioned homeless communities ... two (2) of the really shining 
examples of what we were able to do included connectivity at Pu'uhonua 0 
Waimanalo, which is Bumpy Kanahele's group. We were able to do that with strong 
participation by the Internet Society. We were able to get them set up with WiFi 
access. We are also in the process, and we received funding, to help connect 
Pu'uhonua O Waianae. This was also through funding provided by the Internet 
Society as well as from the Weinberg Foundation. The goal of that project is to 
connect the community with fiber, but also distributing WiFi inside the community 
so that they can have WiFi accesspoints and the ability to connect their laptops to the 
network. We are neutral to the actual wireless technology. I want to point out that 
whether you are talking about WiFi, 4G, or even 5G, the wireless frequencies that 
are being used are consistent across those technologies. To call out 5G is probably 
not fair in terms of ... the :frequency is currently being used in 4G as well as in WiFi. 
5G is just the protocol. The protocol uses a variety of different :frequencies. That is 
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what is enabling the faster speeds with technologies like 5G. I want to make sure 
that when people start to get fearful of wireless technologies, the wireless 
technologies are already there and are already being used. I think they are being 
used quite successfully in distributing connectivity into our communities. I just 
wanted to say that. 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: I have a follow-up question from 
Councilmember Evslin, then we will go back to Councilmember Cowden. 

Councilmember Evslin: I just wanted to quickly clarify that the area 
in the Broadband Strategic Plan that Councilmember Cowden was referencing, it 
references wireless technology only as part of the continuum of broadband. I think 
the fact that we all use our phones to access the internet, it is clear that is part of the 
continuum there. I am just clarifying that that is how it is referenced in the Plan. 

Councilmember Cowden: Yes. Burt, thank you. Since before I was 
elected ... there are a lot of people who are concerned about 5G. I understand that it 
is a protocol. They tend to have a different type of distribution system, that is my 
understanding. They are smaller cells and a shorter wavelength. I am hearing you 
say that if we agree with this, it is not committing to 5G, is that correct? Can you 
speak to the people who are afraid of 5G to let them know the difference of what this 
is? It is the internet of things. It is not just a step up from 4G. This involves the 
internet of things. Can you speak to that for a moment? 

Mr. Lum: Sure. The Resolution is not obligating the 
County to deploy 5G. That is not the intent. To your question about 5G and the 
technology that it uses ... just like when you have ... forgive me for being technical, but 
when you talk about radio frequencies (RF), the higher frequency also corresponds to 
a smaller wavelength. That wavelength is affected by objects, whether it is leaves 
houses or other potential physical obstructions, those wavelengths will have their 
paths broken by those objects. In the case of the 5G small cells, where 4G can traverse 
longer spans of distance, 5G, because of its small wavelength, will need to be more 
frequently, in terms of the small cells, be placed so that there are ... the chances of 
running into obstructions over a longer distance is minimized. It is just like your in­
house WiFi. Your in-house WiFi has a frequency that it uses that could be obstructed. 
With 5G and using frequencies in the gigahertz range, there is a potential for 
obstruction. That is why there is a need for more of them and that is why it refers to 
the small cells. I hope that made sense. 

Councilmember Cowden: Okay. Yes, that did make sense. I have been 
following this pretty closely because there is a deeply concerned community. They 
have not really had the opportunity to weigh in, that I saw. Are you familiar with 
Starlink? 
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Mr. Lum: Yes. 

Councilmember Cowden: Is Starlink part of the Keep Americans 
Connected group? 

Mr. Lum: Starlink recently was awarded something by 
the FCC called the Rural Digital Opportunity Fund (RDOF). RDOF was an auction 
over various telecom broadband providers to service an area. In Hawai'i, the two (2) 
companies that got RDOF auctions was Hawaiian Telcom as well as Starlink. 
Starlink is the low-orbit Earth satellite project that is spearheaded by SpaceX and of 
course, you all know Elon Musk. Starlink is part of SpaceX. They are launching 
satellites that will orbit the Earth and provide wireless internet connectivity. The 
reason I bring it up in terms of RDOF, is that they won the contract or the auction 
for delivering internet to Ni'ihau. That will be received directly in your backyard and 
in your County. 

Councilmember Cowden: That is an area where people have concerns. 
I believe they are planning to have maybe one thousand six hundred (1,600) satellites 
up in orbit by the end of 2021. Is an agreement with this document here in any way 
giving a green light to ... I think it is going to happen regardless, correct? 

Mr. Lum: The signing of this Resolution does not have 
any part in the Starlink, RDOF, FCC agreement that has already been signed with 
the Federal government. 

Councilmember Cowden: I think Star link's goal is ... were they approved 
for forty-two thousand (42,000) satellites? Is that correct? They had twelve 
thousand (12,000) approved and they are almost finished with another thirty 
thousand (30,000). They are going to be up everywhere, correct? 

Mr. Lum: They are in the process of deployment, 
correct. They have announced preliminarily that they will be in service by the end of 
the year. 

Councilmember Cowden: We hear from people who deeply fear this like 
a dystopian story. You are never going to get away from it. I know that the military 
has the surface of the Earth mapped in real-time. There are low-level satellites all 
around the planet right now. This is just essentially doing this for the private-sector. 
The military knows where we are at any time. I have gone to those meetings and had 
those presentations. Starlink is independent of this paper, but this has to be 
connected somehow, correct? It is part of the funding that is coming out of the Federal 
government right now. 
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Mr. Lum: Councilmember Evslin? I do not see the 
connection between Starlink and the Department of Defense. 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: Councilmember Evslin. 

Councilmember Evslin: I have two (2) quick responses. I hope we do 
not get too sidetracked with conversations about 5G. It is clearly technology-agnostic 
in this Resolution. I just wanted to point out on page 20 of the Broadband Strategic 
Plan, which might help reassure Councilmember Cowden a little bit, it says 
"submarine fiber is currently and for the foreseeable future, the only practical 
technology to enable reliable, high-speed broadband access to broadband subscribers 
to all islands." At least for me, that is not saying that it is lifting up satellite 
technology over other technologies. It would also reassure Councilmember 
Cowden ... ! would like to clarify that the World Health Organization (WHO) has a big 
section on their website about 5G. It says, "To-date and after much research 
performed, no adverse health effect has been causably linked with exposure to 
wireless technologies. As the frequency increases, there is less penetration into the 
body tissues and absorption of the energy becomes more confined to the surface of the 
body, provided that the overall exposure remains below international guidelines, no 
consequences for public health are anticipated." Again, I do not want to go too far 
down that road. I think it is important to clarify. Someone watching could get the 
wrong impression here. · 

Councilmember Cowden: I am going to follow that .. .it has not been 
causably linked because it has never been tested. It is not possible to test it and it 
has never been tested. When they said that it has not been proven or 1inked to a 
problem, that just simply means that it has not been tested. If it has been tested, 
they say, "It is tested and these are the results." It has simply not been tested. That 
is the kind of thing that upsets the trust. I will raise it back beyond 5G now. It is a 
little alarming to get six (6) days notice and to have to vote on this today. I know the 
people who are passionate about this topic, they picket in front of our building, it feels 
like every other week, and are called "For Our Rights." People call them the 
"Anti-Maskers." It is not about the mask. It is about 5G. I feel like when we are 
doing something like this, it would be good ifwe had had outreach where these people 
have a chance to be able to hear about it, digest it ... I really love the part that says 
that this is going to help everyone. I really want a new cable, for sure. When we are 
up in these places that are in the far reaches of the valleys, I do not know how we get 
that cable up there. It is not very cost effective to put a tower up there. When I 
looked at Starlink's website, they use very similar words. When I look at the Starlink 
discussion, they use very similar words to helping the indigenous people. I am very 
much someone who cares deeply about those who live closest to the earth, and I pay 
close attention to it. It is a challenge. I like the warm and fuzzies of all of this. Where 
do we find Keep Americans Connected? If people want to watch some of the recorded 
Wednesday meetings, is there a website? 
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Mr. Lum: The primary website that I have is 
www.broadband.hawaii.gov. I try to post some of the links to the videos of the 
meetings. If people wanted to see a specific week, they can just E-mail me and I can 
share the videos. 

Councilmember Cowden: Can people join? Can they become a part of 
the group or is it by invitation only? 

Mr. Lum: The Broadband Hui is open. We try to 
encourage constructive discussion about how do we move forward with identifying 
the gaps and finding resources to address those gaps. 

Councilmember Cowden: Thank you. That is what is important to me. 
I do not want to always be the conduit between the distressed and the policy. I want 
people who are concerned to be able to watch and learn in a way that is comfortable 
for them. I was very surprised by this and only had six (6) days. I wish that we had 
another meeting before we were to confirm this so that anyone who did want to talk, 
they would feel like the door was open to them and they would be able to listen. I 
read it and I liked everything it said. The only thing I was picking on was on page 3, 
item 3. I just wanted to make sure that we were able to talk about that. 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: 
post. 

Councilmember Cowden: 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: 
Members on this Resolution? 

This item was posted like any other item we 

Yes. 

Are there any further questions from the 

Councilmember Evslin: I think Ken might have wanted to say 
something. You are on mute, Ken. I have had the same thing happen to me many 
times on Council Meeting days. Before we lose Ken and Burt here, I just want to 
thank you for staying on all day and being here to answer all the questions. I really 
appreciate it. This Resolution was brought to us by Ken after every other island had 
passed it. I really appreciate that, Ken. 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: Are there any other questions from the 
Members? If not, is there any final discussion from the Members? 

There being no objections, the meeting was called back to order and proceeded 
as follows: 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: Councilmember Chock. 



COUNCIL MEETING 60 APRIL 21, 2021 

Councilmember Chock: I just wanted to thank the introducers and 
those on the call. It is really a timely discussion. The digital equity divide is really 
prevalent everywhere. We need to do what we can. This is sort of one of those risk 
versus benefit topics. I am thankful to Councilmember Cowden for bringing up some 
of the concerns as well. What I am really looking forward to is how the private sector 
embraces this. They play such a big role in being able to provide this. When I first 
looked at this, one of the first things that jumped out was the study that you all did 
and how it is that we are integrating the public-private partnership. Without it, we 
will continue to suffer. We are in the middle of the ocean, so we need to do everything 
that we can to ensure that the connectivity is accessible to everyone. Thank you so 
much. 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: Councilmember Kuali'i. 

Councilmember Kuali'i: I also wanted to thank the introducers. I 
think this is a very important Resolution and I think it is really important that we 
all put some time and resources behind broadband connectivity, especially when it 
comes to digital equity. When you look at the map you will see ... even on Hawaiian 
Homesteads land in Anahola, it is darker shaded so it has less connectivity. I just 
want to tell you too, that it is National County Government Month, and you should 
go to the National Association of Counties (NACo) website, www.naco.org, and you 
will find many resources about broadband there as well. They started a tested 
application back in 2019. It is not only important that you have connectivity, but 
what level of connectivity you have, how fast is it and is it good enough at a minimal 
level so that you can do what you need to do? NACo has a Broadband Task Force 
that they just started last October. Last month in our Legislative Conference, we 
heard from the FCC Acting Chairwoman, Jessica Rosenworcel, and she told us about 
the Emergency Broadband Benefit and the three billion two hundred million 
dollars ($3,200,000,000.00) Congress directed to the FCC to establish this program. 
It is a new program that could bring fifty dollars ($50) a month for internet service to 
low-income households and up to seventy dollars ($70) a month for low-income 
households on tribal lands. I know that the tribal lands issue also includes Hawaiian 
homestead lands. As long as you qualified for the Lifeline Support for Affordable 
Communications program in the past, you received free or reduced-priced lunches in 
the past, have had a Federal Pell Grant, or had a substantial loss of income since 
February of 2020, you could qualify. The annual income eligibility levels are ninety­
nine thousand dollars ($99,000) for single and one hundred ninety-eight thousand 
dollars ($198,000) for married filing jointly. This is actual money in your pocket to 
help with this. If you did not know about the Lifeline support benefit, which has been 
in place for a very long time ... since 2005 ... they updated it in 2016 to include 
broadband connectivity. That could be up to nine dollars and twenty-five 
cents ($9.25) per month discounted off of your bill. More information can be found at 
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www.lifelinesupport.org. I fully support this Resolution and we need to do as much 
as we can. 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: Councilmember Carvalho. 

Councilmember Carvalho: Mahalo to the introducers of the Resolution. 
This is a very important area of discussion. I like the details and the layout of the 
Resolution and the added information. I really like that it involves everyone from 
keiki to kupuna, as we really have to include that entire spectrum. When I heard 
about the elders part of it, they need a lot of support there, too. That is the part that 
really got to me. Thank you for the Resolution. I look forward to more discussion. 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: Councilmember Cowden. 

Councilmember Cowden: Our remote work time during the 
stay-at-home orders through COVID-19 has really exemplified how valuable remote 
work can be. We are seeing many people both moving here and bringing more types 
of funding into the economy. It is not opening up a new industry. They are bringing 
their industries with them. What my hope is that we can learn for our young people, 
whether they go to college or work on the ground in the continental United States, 
that they can pretty quickly come home and work remotely with solid employment 
that helps them compete at a national level. I think there is so much value that is 
possible. I have been jumping up and down wanting a new high-speed cable over 
here. We do all of our remote meetings. There is a high demand. We here on Kaua'i 
clearly need to upgrade our technology. I am behind that. I am behind really all of 
it. I will support this. I am kindly asking that if there is not a deadline on this ... like 
the last Resolution we had a deadline ... ! would like to have had two (2) weeks on the 
Resolution regarding the bike path near the beach .. .if we could just wait two (2) 
weeks so that people, when they read about this in the newspaper or when they hear 
about this, that they will feel that they had a time to be included and to learn. I think 
when people are shocked with something, then they lose trust in government. I know 
that was not the intention of any of this. This was so beautifully written. I am 
grateful for all of the people who are a part of our Keep Americans Connected group 
and the opportunities that this brings to the future. I do support this. I will vote for 
it regardless, but I am respectfully asking my colleagues to consider including the 
population in being able to know about it. I would like many people to be excited 
about it, instead of just finding out that it happened and it was over. My role 
seemingly in this community is that I usually hear from the people who are the least 
happy. I know that Council Vice Chair Chock and I have spoken to the same groups 
of people since before I took office, that this might feel unsettling to. I would like to 
have that opportunity to be able to share it with people so that they are not unsettled 
and they feel happy. That is my position. That is my request, if you could consider 
that. Thank you both, Burt and Ken. Ken, I would like to talk to you later about this 
as I know you will be a beautiful resource on-island. Thank you. 
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Council Chair Kaneshiro: I am ready to vote on this now. We posted it 
properly and we followed the process that every other resolution goes through. I 
understand that maybe it did not reach as many people you feel it should have 
reached. I am ready to vote on the Resolution right now. When looking at the 
Resolution, if we put if off another two (2) weeks, I do not think any of the contents 
of the Resolution would actually change, including any type of amendment to the 
wording or the exhibit. Nothing in the Resolution will change and we can always get 
the information out to everyone. This can be shared with anyone at any time. That 
is just my opinion. Councilmember Kuali'i, then Councilinember Evslin. 

Councilmember Kuali'i: I just wanted to add that when 
Councilmember Evslin talked about public buildings offering free WiFi, during 
COVID-19, it became more apparent how important that was. I believe that the 
County is working towards that end. I think it would be good to know how we are 
proceeding with that in terms of whether our neighborhood centers are equipped with 
free WiFi. I assume that the State libraries have been. I will add that maybe there 
is a way to incentivize and encourage other public types of buildings to do the same. 
I know our homestead facilities at our marketplace and our open-air pavilion cafe in 
Anahola has free WiFi for the public as well. That is important. I am happy to 
support Councilmember Cowden's request. I do not know if there is any kind of 
urgency from the introducers. It would just give us another opportunity to provide 
more information and perhaps to hear from some of the people she is afraid that have 
not had the chance to comment. I know it is unusual. 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: Councilmember Evslin. 

Councilmember Evslin: Thank you for all of the discussion today. 
Thank you again to Burt and Ken for being here. My hope is that we can pass this 
today. I do not think there is anything huge or hidden in here in that it really clearly 
supports that as we make this transition, to make sure that we are not leaving people 
behind and that we are prioritizing equity, affordability, and accessibility in 
broadband deployment. If there are people who are opposed to those things, I would 
be happy to meet with them afterwards. I was not aware that there were groups 
opposed to that. Most people that I see understand the importance of that. I would 
be happy to meet with anyone who wants to discuss these things. For rile, personally, 
I used to live kind of in the mountains. I used to connect to the internet through 
tethering my iPhone to my computer. It was a nightmare for seven (7) years to not 
really have internet. I received an online Master's degree and I could not even attend 
a class at my home. Every day to go to class, I would go and sit at Coffee Bean and 
Tea Leaf. All day Saturday and Sunday, I would be at Coffee Bean and Tea Leaf 
trying to take a test .. .it is not the greatest place to be. Now that I live in a house in 
Lihu'e, it is amazing, almost like magic that I can connect to the internet in a second. 
It is also amazing how quickly you end up taking it for granted. For those of us who 
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have really good internet, we can sometimes forget what it is like not to have great 
access to internet. That is really what this is trying to support. 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: Councilmember DeCosta. 

Councilmember DeCosta: Thank you, Councilmember Evslin, and I 
much appreciated working on this with you for the betterment of the people here on 
Kaua'i and in the State of Hawai'i. Sunshine Law prohibits us from working outside 
of two (2) people. We were not able to talk to anyone else about this. We put this on 
the agenda like any other item, six (6) days prior. We did our due diligence. With 
that being said, we were open to any negative or positive testifiers. We had none. 
Our job is to look into it. I went out to my constituents as you did and I did not hear 
one negative comment about this. In fact, I heard a lot from our rural areas and they 
are crying for better internet service. The children are going to college on the East 
Coast. They do not want to have to go to Starbucks to take a 3:00 a.m. class at Yale 
University, because that is the only time they can get internet service. They can now 
do it out of their bed at 3:00 a.m. or 4:00 a.m. The East Coast time difference is about 
six (6) hours. People are trading stocks and commodities in New York, and they are 
doing worldwide business. This is a no-brainer. We understand that there are some 
passionate cries out there about health issues. Councilmember Evslin and I did 
research, and the National Cancer Institute (NCI), the National Institute of Health 
(NIH), and the National Toxicology of Program (NTP) did many studies and none of 
them showed that RF energies show any type of cancer in any type of human beings. 
We would be willing to talk more with constituents out there. I am ready to vote on 
this and move forward. Thank you. 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: Councilmember Cowden. 

Councilmember Cowden: All of those studies are acute studies and they 
are not long-range studies. It is also an invalid study. We are a democracy or in 
theory that is what we are. When we do our normal notification of six (6) days ahead, 
very few people know what any of this is about. I try hard to get the word out. Most 
people who are not paying attention do not know. When we have non-COVID-19 
times, when this building is open, there are people in here. There are reporters here. 
There are people who are involved and we hear from them. They are not involved 
right now. What we are doing is making a whole lot of choices that people find out 
about after-the-fact. Our role is to include the public. Most things that go on the 
agenda-we have a first reading, a committee meeting, a second reading, et cetera. 
A resolution goes through really quickly. I am going to respectfully move to defer to 
May 5, 2021. 
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Councilmember Cowden moved to defer Resolution No. 2021-20, seconded by 
Councilmember Kuali'i, and failed by the following vote: 

FOR DEFERRAL: 
AGAINST DEFERRAL: 
EXCUSED & NOT VOTING: 
RECUSED & NOT VOTING: 

Chock, Cowden, Kuali'i 
Carvalho, DeCosta, Evslin, Kaneshiro 
None 
None 

TOTAL-3, 
TOTAL -4, 
TOTAL-0, 
TOTAL-0. 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: We are back to the vote on the Resolution. 
Again, for me, this is just informational. It is not going to change the world. It is a 
Resolution. It is an agreement of the Council and what we would like to see moving 
forward. It does not hold any weight as far as whether we are going to stop or move 
forward with this proposal. Ifwe want to get the information out, we can still provide 
this information to the public. I could see if this is a decision that the Council was 
making that would affect our County or a decision that was going to impact our 
residents ... this is a Resolution and I feel like we have talked about it, we heard the 
information, we can have people watch the meeting on the webcast, they can access 
the documents that we have here, and we can move on. I am ready to vote on this. 
Is there any final discussion on this item? Councilmember Cowden. 

Councilmember Cowden: For those who did not get a chance to hear 
about this, I respect you, I respect how important it is to include you, and I am sorry. 

(No registered speakers requested to testify regarding this agenda item.) 

The motion for adoption of Resolution No. 2021-20 was then put, and carried 
by the following vote: 

FOR ADOPTION: Carvalho, Chock, Cowden, 
DeCosta, Evslin, Kuali'i, Kaneshiro 

AGAINST ADOPTION: None 
EXCUSED & NOT VOTING: None 
RECUSED & NOT VOTING: None 

Ms. Fountain-Tanigawa: Seven (7) ayes. 

TOTAL-7, 
TOTAL-0, 
TOTAL-0, 
TOTAL-0. 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: The motion is carried. Next, let us read 
ourselves into Executive Session. We will then take the public hearings and then 
take lunch. We will not need to be back on camera. Everything will be in Executive 
Session after lunch. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
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ES-1051 Pursuant to Hawai'i Revised Statutes (HRS) Sections 92-4 and 
92-5(a)(4), and Kaua'i County Charter Section 3.07(E), on behalf of the Council, the 
Office of the County Attorney requests an Executive Session with the Council to 
provide the Council with a briefing, discussion, and consultation regarding the 
Quarterly Report on Pending and Denied Claims. This briefing and consultation 
involves consideration of the powers, duties, privileges, immunities, and/or liabilities 
of the Council and the County as they relate to this agenda item. 

ES-1052 Pursuant to Hawai'i Revised Statutes (HRS) Sections 92-4 and 
92-5(a)(4), and Kaua'i County Charter Section 3.07(E), the Office of the County 
Attorney requests an Executive Session with the Council to provide the Council with 
a briefing and request for settlement authority on workforce housing requirements 
for Tax Map Key No. (4) 2-8-014-032. This briefing and consultation involves 
consideration of the powers, duties, privileges, immunities, and/or liabilities of the 
Council and the County as they relate to this agenda item. 

Councilmember Chock moved to convene into Executive Session for ES-1051 
and ES-1052, seconded by Councilmember Carvalho. 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: Are there any questions or discussion? 

(No written testimony was received and no registered speakers requested to 
testify regarding these agenda items.) 

The motion to convene into Executive Session for ES-1051 and ES-1052 was 
then put, and unanimously carried. 

Council Chair Kaneshiro: That concludes the business on our 
agenda. Not seeing or hearing any objections, this Council Meeting is now adjourned. 

ADJOURNMENT. 

There being no further business, the Council Meeting adjourned at 12:38 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

County Clerk 

:Jy 


